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-CGALLICWARS

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Caesar’s Gallic War is a two player game based on Julius
Caesar’s conquest of Gaul. One player is the Roman and the
other is the Barbarian. The game begins with Caesar’s arrival
in Gaul in 58 BC and lasts through 51 BC. During this time
both players will attempt to bring Gallic tribal areas under
their control, either through military or political means. Both
players will eventually receive additional units; the Romans
will receive four additional legions over the course of the
game, while the Barbarian player will eventually receive
Vercingetorix and other Gallic leaders that are allied to the
Barbarian cause. The goal of the game is to score more
victory points than your opponent, which is accomplished by
controlling the tribe areas, as well as eliminating certain
enemy units. Historical Note: In the period and scale of this
game, Caesar’s success in making some German tribes allies is
not conveyed.

2.0 COMPONENTS

One game map
60+ wooden blocks
31 Action cards
Four dice

‘This rulebook
2.1 THE GAME MAP

The map has been divided into areas, with most areas home
to a particular tribe. The name of the area is the name of

the tribe that inhabits that area and is its home. The Roman
player home area is Transalpine Gaul and they have a Roman
Off Map Area and they ate red. The Barbarian player home
area is Germania and it is blue. Between the Barbarian player
home area and the Roman player home area is Gaul (the Gal-
lic tribal areas). The color groupings used in Gaul are to aid
with setup and represent the historical regions of Gaul (green
is Belgica, grey is Celtae, and dark green for Aquitaine). The
map also contains a key that explains some of its features.

Some areas have a Fortified Town symbol (errata: the Sequani
area should be fortified). These areas provide bonuses to the
original defender, and supply points for the Romans. The
name of each town is provided for historical flavor. The
border between each area is either black or blue. The blue
border denotes rivers or terrain that can limit movement. The
Alps (in Helvetii) and Rhine River incur certain penalties or
bonuses. Ocean is between Britannia and coast and is not
playable except by amphibious movement. Most

coastal areas contain a port symbol. Units that start their
action in a port space can move amphibiously from their cur
rent area to another area that contains a port symbol.

The Turn Track keeps a record of what turn it is. There are
eight turns, with each tutn representing one year. In addition,
it shows the die roll necessary to bring in additional Roman
reinforcements. It can also be used to track whether or not
Caesar or Ariovistus wintered for the turn. The Supply/Tribes
Controlled/VP’s Track keeps track of these factors in the
game and there are marker blocks to use on the track. Each
side has an area on the map to place cards that were used to
activate a neutral tribe. This is useful in order to help players
remember their respective limits.

2.2 THE UNITS

Each unit is represented by a colored block with the appropri-
ate label applied. To apply the labels, peel them from the label
sheet and position in the center of the appropriate colored
block for that label. Once positioned press the label down
firmly. Only one label should be applied to each block. Apply
the red (Roman) labels to the black blocks. Apply the blue
(German) labels to the blue blocks. Apply the grey (Gallic -
Celtae) labels on the grey blocks, green (Gallic - Belgae) labels
on the green blocks, and dark green (Gallic - Aquitaine) labels
to the green blocks.

Gallic

German

Roman

Each unit has a certain number of triangles on each side
(pips) that represent its strength. The number of pips a unit
has indicates the number of dice rolled in battle. As units
take “hits” in battle they are reduced in strength by rotat-
ing the block counterclockwise. In the upper right corner of
each unit is its initiative rating that determines the order in
which a unit performs battle. There are three possible initia-
tive ratings — A, B and C. A units would perform bartle first,
B units perform battle next, C units perform battle last. In
the lower right corner of each unit is its battle rating which
is the numeric value needed or less on a die roll to score a hit
when performing battle. Each unit also contains its name.
For Roman legions, a Roman numeral indicating the legion
number. For Barbarian and Gallic tribe units, the name of



the tribe is printed. For most leader units the name of the
leader is printed on the block. Movement rate for all units is
one area.

Unit Name Initiative Rating

Strength Pips Battle Rating

The black Roman blocks are controlled by the Roman player.
The blue Barbarian blocks are controlled by the Barbarian
player. The grey and green Gallic tribe blocks are in one of
two states: neutral and controlled by neither player and
placed face down on the board; or active and controlled by
the Roman or Barbarian player. Active unit blocks are stood
upright with the label facing the controlling player. Active
Gallic tribe units controlled by the Roman player are Roman
allies. Active Gallic tribe units controlled by the Batbarian
player are Barbarian allies. Players may not look at their
opponents unit labels. In the rules “Roman units” means
Roman legion units and Gallic tribes that are allies to the Ro-
man player. When the rules refer to “Roman legion” units it
means only the black block Roman units. “Barbarian units”
mean German units and Gallic tribes that are allies to the
Barbarian player. When the rules refer to “German” units it
means the blue block German units.

2.3 THE CARDS

Cards contain either the name of a Gallic Tribe with an im-
age of its tribe area on the card or an event which summarizes
the effect of the event. The Action Point value is printed on
the card.

Event Card

Roman: Select 1 Barbarian
controfled tibe to retum home and
become neutral. If occupied the iribe
joins the olher player, batlle is
resolved with units retuming home
the altacker.

Barbarian: Select 1 tribe Roman
controfled or neulral, in Celtae o
Belgica 1o refum home and become
Barbarian alies. If Roman
ocoupied resohve battle refuming

Action Point
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3.0 GAME SETUP

The Barbarian player starts with Ariovistus and the three
German infantry units at full strength in Germania. The
Barbarian player controls the three Helvetii tribe units at full
strength in their home area. Stand these units upright facing
the Barbarian player,

The Roman player starts legions VII, VIII, IX, X (Caesar),
X1, and XII in Transalpine Gaul at full strength. The Roman
player controls the Volcae tribe at full strength, and the Al-
lobroges tribe at strength 1 each. The Volcae and Allobroges

units the attacker. If no Roman units
present, or batlle a Barbarian
viclory, place minor leader in that
area. Aclivate that area (onky) for
mavernent
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start in their home areas. Stand these units upright facing the
Roman player. The Romans begin the game with 15 supply
points.

All other tribes are placed in their home areas, face down.
They begin the game neutral.

Note: Any units controlled by a player should be standing
upright with the label facing the controlling player.

4.0 SEQUENCE OF PLAY

The game is divided into 8 turns with cach turn representing
one year. Each game turn is divided into a Card Phase, where
cards are dealt and played, and an End of Turn phase that is
conducted after all cards have been played. The sequence of
play summary is:

SEQUENCE OF PLAY

1. CARD PHASE
A. Draw Cards and Play
B. Card Action Phase Order
i. Events
ii. Supply Action
iii. Neutral Tribe Activation
iv. Political Action
v. Movement

2. END OF TURN PHASE
A. Check Harvest
B. Units Go Home in the Following Order
i. Eliminated Gallic Tribe Units
ii. Roman Legions
iii. Gallic Tribes Allied to the Roman Player
iv. Gallic Tribes Allied to the Barbarian Player
v. German Units

C. Tribe Area Control

D. Supply and Attrition

E. Replacements

F. Roman Supply Point Production
G. Roman Reinforcements

5.0 CARD PHASE

5.1. DRAW CARDS
Shuffle the card deck and deal five cards to each player. If the

Romans control 13 or more tribes at the end of the previous
turn, the Barbarian player has the option of putting the
Massive Revolt card in his hand first if not already played. If
using this option, only deal four cards to the Barbarian
player. If not already played, at the start of 52 BC (only) the
Barbarian player may select the Massive Revolt even if the
Romans control less than 13 tribes, but it costs 1 VP and
must be the first card played and must be played as an event.

5.2. CARD ACTION PHASE

Each player selects one card from his five card hand and
places that card face down. Both players then simultaneousl;
reveal which card they have selected. Each player then an-
nounces what action they are taking, Romans first. Actions
are then resolved in card action order. There are five possible
actions and they are resolved in the following order: Event,
Supply Action. Neutral Tribe Activation. Political Action or



Movement. If both players select the same action, the Ro-
mans resolve their action first.

Exception: If both players selected a Movement action, the
player who played a card with the highest action value moves
first. If both players played a card with the same action value,
the Romans move first.

At the end of each card play (both players have played their
selected card) if units of the Roman player and Barbarian
player finish in the same area, a battle occurs.

This process is repeated until all five cards have been played
and resolved. Played cards should be placed in the discard
pile unless used for Neutral Tribe Activation in which case
they are placed in the respective players Neutral Tribe Activa-
tion area on the map. Cards cannot be held between turns,
i.e. a player may not pass in order to save a card for a future
turn. Discard piles are not secret. They may be examined at
any time by either player. All played cards and the un-dealt
portion of the deck are shuffled together at the end of the
turn for use at the start of the next turn.

5.2.1 CArD AcTtioN Puase ORDER

A. Events

There are five event cards in the game. Each event card

may be played as the event as described on the card, or may
instead be played as a 1 for a Movement Action. Event cards
may never be used for a Political Action, Neutral Tribe Acti-
vation or Supply Action. The cards explain the event and how
it is applied to the game for each player. See the card roster
section at the back of the rules for details.

B. Supply Action

‘The Roman player tracks his supply points on the Supply/
Tribes Controlled/VP Track on the game board using the
Roman Supply block. The Romans may add a number of
supply points equal to the Action Point value of the card, plus
one.

For example, if the Romans played a card with an Action Point value
of 2 as a Supply Action, he would gain 3 supply points.

The Barbarian player may not use a card for a Supply Action
until Vercingetorix is in play. The Barbarian player supply
action is the play of a card to reduce the number of Roman
supply points by the Action Point value of the card. The
Barbarian player may perform a maximum of one Supply
Action per turn (year) while Vercingetorix is in play.

C. Neutral Tribe Activation

Both players may activate neutral tribes and automatically
bring them under their control as allies at full strength. The
name of the tribe on the card must match the name of the
neutral tribe the active player wishes to activate. Neither
player can change control of a tribe that is already controlled
by the opposing player with a Neutral Tribe Activation. The
Barbarian player is limited to two neutral tribe activations per
turn (year). The Roman player is limited to one neutral tribe
activation per turn (year). When Neutral tribes are activated
stand the units upright facing he player to which they are al-
lied. Note: Neutral tribes may be activated by other cards or
actions that do not count against this per turn limit.

Exception: The Romans may not use 2 Neutral Tribe Activa-
tion to activate Britannia.

D. Political Action

Either player may use a card to attempt to change the politi-
cal allegiance of any tribe on the map, whether it’s a neutral
or controlled by the opposing player.

Roll a die. If the selected area of the Political Action matches
the name of the tribe on the card, the active player receives a
-1 bonus to the die roll in his favor. If the die roll result is less
than or equal to the Action Point value on the card played,
the Political Action is successful and control is switched to
the active player. All units of that tribe immediately return
to their home area (if not already home) at their current
strength, and are now controlled by the active player. If there
are enemy units present then a battle is immediately fought
(see 5.2.2. Battles). The units returning home are considered
the attacker.

If a Political Action is successful against the home area of

a Minor Leader, that leader is immediately eliminated. If a
Political Action is successful against the home area of Vercin-
getorix, the Barbatian player immediately designates a new
home area. The home area must belong to a tribe that is cur-
rently controlled by the Barbarian player and is free of enemy
units. If no such area exists, then Vercingetorix is eliminated.
The Romans score victory points normally in this case.

‘The Roman player may only select Britannia as the target of a
Political Action if there is at least one Roman legion in a port
area. The Barbarian player may select Britannia as the target
of a Political Action if there is any friendly active unit in a
port area. The Roman player may not use a Political Action
against Germania,

A neutral tribe activated by a Political Action does not count
against the Neutral Tribe Activation limit.

Political Action Example

The Roman player plays the Santone card for a politi-
cal action. He decides to target the Santones with his
political action. By naming the Santones be receives

B -1 die roll bonus since the target tribe matches the
name of the card. He rolls a 3 which is reduced to a
2 due to the die roll bonus and the Santones are now
Roman controlled.

E. Movement

The active player may activate for movement a number of
groups up to the Action Point value of a card, or none at all if
they choose. All units within an area are considered a group.
Each group moving may move together to the same area or
individual units within the group could move to separate
arcas. Unit movement rate is one area per card play (round).
Retrear and regroup do not count as movement. All groups
must be designated prior to actual movement.

For example, 4 Roman legions starting in Transalpine Gaul could as
part of one group move have 2 units move into Allobroges and 2 units
move into Helvetii, or all 4 into Allobroges, or any number of other
moves within the restrictions of movement.



Exception: Each Roman legion unit in the off-map area is
considered its own group, i.e. they must be moved onto the
map one at a time, and only into Transalpine Gaul. Barbarian
units may not enter the off-map area.

Roman Legion Force March - Roman legion units (only)
have the option to expend one supply point per legion unit in
order to conduct a forced march. This allows the legion unit
to move up to two areas per card play instead of one.

Borders and other terrain restrict movement and limit the
number of units that may move from one area to another ad-
jacent area. A maximum of six units may cross a black border
from one area to another. A maximum of two units may cross
a blue border from one area to another. All units crossing a
blue border or moving using naval movement must stop im-
mediately. This supersedes forced marches by Roman legions,
i.e. a supply point may not be spent to force march a legion
that has just crossed a blue border (though it could cross a
blue border on its second move). Border limits are applied
separately to each player. For example, both the Roman and
Barbarian players could move two units across the same blue
border in the same card play.

Units moving into an area containing enemy or neutral units
are considered atracking that area. Units in an area into which
the opposing player moves units are considered the defender.
All units entering an area containing enemy or neutral units
must stop immediately. Entering an area containing

a neutral tribe causes that tribe to join the opposing player,
though battle is not resolved until the end of the card play
round. If both players move into the area of a neutral wibe,
the tribe will join the player who moved into the area last.

Pinning - When moving into an area, all attacking units
(including reserves) prevent an equal number of defending
enemy units in an area from moving in that round. The de-
fender chooses which units are pinned. Any unpinned units
may move and attack normally, except that they may not
cross any border used by the attacker to enter that area.

NavaL MOVEMENT

The ocean may not be entered or crossed except from port
area to port area using naval movement. Units that start in a
port area may use naval movement. Up to two units may
move from one port area to another per round as part of one
group move. Barbal'ian units may not use naval movement to
enter a port that contains enemy or neutral units. Conversely,
Roman units may use naval movement to enter a port area
that contains enemy or neutral units, though this affects battle
by allowing the units defending the port area to be an “A”
rated unit for the entire battle.

Movement Example

The Roman player used a 1’ action point card for movement, he may
activate one group. He activates the group in Transalpine Gaul (his six
legions), and moves legions VII and VIII directly from Transalpine Gaul
r0 Helverii. Since it's a blue border he can move no more units across
that border. He then uses o supply points to force march legion IX
and X (Caesar) from Transalpine Gaul to Allobroges and from there
into Helvetii. Roman supply is reduced from 15 to 13. The Romans

then force march legions XI and XII from Transalpine Gaul to Sequani
through Allobroges. Roman supply is now ar 11. The Roman legions can
force march through Allobroges because the Gallic units in

Allobroges are Roman allies. If be bad played a 2’ action point card,
he could have alse moved the Roman allies grouped in Allobroges or
any other group in an area.
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§5.2.2. BATTLE

Battles are foughr as a result of Event, Political Action, and
Movement card play. Each bartle must be completed before
fighting the next battle. Battles occurring as the result of
Event and Political Action card play are resolved immediately
with the order determined by the active player. The player
who selected a movement action and moved first this round
determines the order in which battles are fought as the result
of a movement card play.

In any area in which there is a battle both players reveal their
units by tipping the unit block forward so that they show
their current strength. After each battle is completed, return
any surviving units upright before proceeding to the next
battle. After all units have taken one battle action, one battle
round is considered to have passed. Repeat the sequence for
a 2nd and 3rd round if necessary. Battles are fought for a
maximum of 3 battle rounds. The attacker must retreat if the
defender is not eliminated and does not retreat by the end of
the 3rd round. This procedure is repeated until all battles are
complete.

Each unit may fire, retreat or pass during each battle round.
This is called a battle action. The order in which a unit re-
solves its battle action depends on its initiative. All defending
units with an initiative of ‘A’ take their battle action first, fol-



lowed by all atracking ‘A’ units. Then all defending ‘B” units
take their action, followed all attacking ‘B’ units. Finally, all
defending ‘C’ units take their action, followed by all attack-
ing ‘C’ units. Exception: If the Caesar unit is involved in a
battle, it always rolls first, regardless of enemy initiative or
circumstances.

Each unit may “fire” by rolling as many dice as its strength.
A hit is scored for every roll less than or equal to its battle
rating. Each hit reduces an enemy unit by one strength point.
This is indicated by rotating the unit counter-clockwise for
each hit. Enemy units may not be targeted individually. Each
hit is applied to the strongest enemy unit. If two or more en-
emy units are the same strength, the owner decides on which
unit to apply the hit except that, in mixed forces, Roman or
German units must take a hit before Barbarian units. Units
eliminated in battle are set aside until the End of Turn Phase.

A. Reserves

Multiple groups may attack or defend the same area, moving
across the same or different borders. However, only one group
is considered the main group. All other groups are consid-ered
reserves. In the case of defending units, the units that began
the action in an area are considered the main group. Any units
that moved to help defend the area are considered reserves. In
the case of attacking units, the player attacking an area decides
which group is the main group and which groups are reserves.

Reserve units may not perform a battle action or suffer hits,
nor are they revealed, in the first round of battle. They are
revealed and participate in the 2nd battle round, even if all
other friendly units have been eliminated. If the attacking
player eliminates all defending units before defending reserve
units artive, then the original attacker is now considered the
defender, and the original defender is now considered the at-
tacker. Battle is then resolved normally.

B. Battle Modifiers

Defending units that were attacked across the Rhine River
(cither into or out of Germania) or units defending in the
Alps (Helvetii) area receive a +1 strength bonus in the first
round of battle only.

Units defending in a fortified town area, or units defending a
port area against a Roman naval move, are considered to have
an initiative rating of ‘A’ for the entire battle. Units defending
in a fortified town area also receive a +1 battle rating bonus in
the first round of battle.

C. Retreat

Instead of firing, each unit may retreat to an adjacent friendly
or empty area. Units may retreat to the same or different
areas. Retreating units are returned to their face up posi-

tion before retreating, potentially concealing which units

are retreating to any particular area. Border limits apply to
retreating units on a per-bactle-round basis, e.g. up to six total
units could retreat across a blue border, but no more than 2
per battle round.

Units may not retreat into an area through which enemy
units entered the area. However, if both players moved units
across the same border in the same round, only the player
who crossed the border last may retreat across that border.

Units may not retreat into a contested area, i..e an area where
there is an unfought battle. Only German units may retreat
into Germania.

D. Naval Retreat

Roman units conducting a naval move into an enemy port
may retreat to any friendly port area. They may not retreat if
there is no friendly port area. Any units defending in a port
area may retreat up to two units (maximum, not per battle
round) to another friendly port area.

E. Regroup

The winner of a battle is the player left controlling the area at
the end of battle and he may regroup his units. Regroup al-
lows all victorious units, including any in reserve, to move to
any adjacent friendly or empty area. Unit cannot regroup inta
an unfought battle. Only German units may regroup into
Germania. Border limits apply to regrouping units.
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Battle Example Of First Battle Round
Following the movement example above. Because the Roman player se-
lected a movement action, he decides the order of the battles. He elects
to resolve the battle in the Helvetii space first, declaring legions VII
and VIII his “main” force and tip them down to reveal their values.
The Barbarian player likewise tips their three units down to reveal thei
vatues. The other two legions are considered reserves and will not enter
the battle until battle round 2. The Roman units are both “A” initia-
tive units, and therefore fire first. The Roman player rolls 8 dice (one
Jor each strength point) and needs a 1 or a 2 to hit since each legion has
a battle rating of 2. He vollsa 1, 1, 2, 2, 3, 3, 5, 6. Four hits! Because
damage must be distributed equally, the Barbarian player reduces the
strength of each Helvetii unit by one, except for one unit that takes two
hirs. Since the Barbarian units have nowhere 1o retreat to (the Sequani
space is an unresolved battle) they decide to fire instead. They would
normally have a total of 5 dice, but because they're defending in the
Alps, each unit receives a +1 strength bonus for the first round of battle.
They therefore have a total strength of 8. The Barbarian player rolls 2,
2, 3,5, 5,5, 5 5. Only two hits. The Roman player applies one hit ro
legions VII and VIII. Rounds 2 and 3 would follow and are shown in
the Comprehensive Example of Play.



6.0 END OF TURN PHASE
After all cards have been played (Card Phase completed for

the the year), players must now deal with returning units to
their home areas, supply and replacements. This reflects the
end of the campaign year when atmies returned home or
went into winter quarters in effect “wintering”. The End of
Turn sequence below should be followed strictly.

6.1 CHECK HARVEST

The harvest affects garrison limits for each area at the end of
the year. Check the harvest by rolling a die. On a roll of 1, it’s
a poor harvest and the garrison limit for each areais 1. Ona
roll of 6, it’s a bountiful harvest and the garrison limit for
each area is 3. On a 2-5 the garrison limit for each area is 2.

Gallic tribe units, including minor leaders, in their home area
do not count against the area garrison limit.

6.2 UNITS GO HOME

Units return to their home areas in the following order:

1) Eliminated Gallic tribe units

2) Roman legions

3) Gallic tribe units controlled by the Roman player
4) Gallic tribe units controlled by the Barbarian player

5) German units

6.2.1 EL1MiINATED GaLLic TrRIBE UNITS

Rerurny HoME
Gallic tribe units that were eliminated return to their home
area. If the area is occupied by any units, the tribe is now
controlled by the owner of the occupying units at strength 1.
If the area is not occupied by any units, it returns to neutral
status at full strength and the units are placed face down.

In the case of a Gallic tribe with two units, but only one unit
has been eliminated and neither player controls the area, the
unit returns to its home area at strength 1 and remains
controlled by the player who controls the other block. Note
that it is therefore possible for each unit of a two unit tribe to
be on different sides!

For example: The Barbarian player, with the Vercingerorix
unit in Arverni controls the Arverni tribe, a 2-unit tribe.
Later that turn one of the units is eliminated, and
Vercingetorix is forced to retreat from the Arverni home area.
At the end of the turn the Romans then winter a legion there,
while the surviving unit winters with Vercingertorix. The
Barbarian player would end up controlling one unit, while
the Romans controlled the other, since it would switch to the
Roman side once it returned home.

6.2.2 Roman Legions Return Home

All Roman legions returning home must return to Transal-
pine Gaul. If there are enemy units in Transalpine Gaul, then
a battle is resolved immediately. All returning legions are
considered a single group, and are considered the attackers,
Barbarian units eliminated in battle return home as per 6.2.1
and 6.2.5, respectively, at the end of the battle.

Caesar must return home if he stayed outside of Transalpine

Gaul at the end of the previous turn. Use the ‘Caesar Win-
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the Caesar unit remains outside Transalpine Gaul at the end
of a year. If Caesar must return to Transalpine Gaul but is
stopped because he is unable (or unwilling) to defeat
Barbarian units already there, then upon retreat he returns to
the off-map area instead.

The Roman player may leave a number of legions in an area
outside of Transalpine Gaul up to the garrison limit of cach
area. Each legion that does not go home costs Supply points
as per 6.4. Each legions suffers a 1 step reduction on its
strength if a Supply point cannot be paid, except for the
Caesar unit which may stay in any Gallic tribe area at no
Supply cost and does not count against an area’s garrison
limit. Roman legions that have been eliminated do not
return immediately, but instead return as reinforcements the
following turn. See the Roman Reinforcements section
eliminated Roman legions.

6.2.3 Gavrric TriBE UN1Ts CONTROLLED BY THE
Roman Praver Rerurny Home

Gallic tribe units controlled by the Roman player return

home and remain Roman allies. If their home area is occu-

pied by units controlled by the Barbarian player, they switch

allegiance to the Barbarian player immediately at current

strength.

6.2.4 Gallic Tribe Units Controlled by the
Barbarian Player Return Home
Gallic tribe units, including minor leaders, controlled by the
Barbatian player then return to their home area (unless
staying outsic?; of their home area with Vercingetorix) and
remain Barbarian allies. If the area is occupied by 2 Roman
unit or Roman allied Gallic unit then the tribe Jrefects at
current strength to the Roman player. If the home area of a
minor leader is occupied by Roman legion units, the minor
leader is eliminated instead. The Vercingetorix unic may
return to its home area but is not obligated to, since it can
stay outside of its home area every turn.

Gallic tribe units may only remain outside of their home area
if with the Vercingetorix unit, up to the garrison limit of the
area.

Note: The Vercingetorix unit counts against the area garrison
limit.

6.2.5 German Units Return Home

German units that were eliminated return to Germania at
strength 1. German units (only) may remain with the
Ariovistus unit outside of Germania up to the garrison limit
of the area. All other German units return home at their
current strength. The Ariovistus unit does count against the
area garrison limit. Use the ‘Ariovistus Wintered’ block on
the turn track if Ariovistus remains outside of Germania at
the end of a year. Ariovistus must return home if he stayed
outside of Germania at the end of the previous turn.

Note: Roman legion units and Gallic tribe units, including
the Vercingetorix unit, may never stay in Germania at the
end of a turn.

6.3 TRIBE AREA CONTROL

Track the number of tribes controlled by both players on the
Tribes Controlled Track with the Tribes Controlled blocks
for each player. Count the number of tribes controlled by
each player. Each tribe controlled is determined by which
player (Roman or Barbarian) has control of the units in the



home area of that tribe after the end of turn sequence. In the
case of two units from one tribe being controlled by both
players, the player with the unit in the home area controls
that tribe. If one player controls 18 or more tribes, that player
wins immediately.

6.4 SUPPLY AND ATTRITION

The Roman player must now pay Supply points for each Ro-
man legion wintering outside of Transalpine Gaul. It costs 2
Supply points per legion, though only 1 if it was a good
harvest, or 3 if the harvest was poor. If enough supply points
are not available, each legion that cannot be supplied takes
one step reduction through attrition. The Roman player must
actempt to supply all units. Attrition is never voluntary. Any
egions reduced to strength 0 from attrition are eliminated
and count as victory points for the Barbarian player. Any
egion eliminated as the result of attrition will return at the
=nd of the following turn as a reinforcement. See Roman
Reinforcements for more details.

6.5 REPLACEMENTS

The Roman player may add strength steps to Roman legions
using supply points. Each step added costs one supply point.
Legions outside of Transalpine Gaul may only add a maxi-
mum of one step per unit. Legions in Transalpine Gaul may
add strength steps up to their maximum strength. German
units in Germania and Gallic tribe units controlled by either
player in their home area may add one point strength per
unit.

6.6 Roman Supply Point Production

The Roman player now receives one Supply point for each
fortified town area he controls, except for Transalpine Gaul,
which produces two Supply points. Adjust the Roman
Supply block accordingly. The number of Supply points may
never increase above 19, nor decrease below 0.

6.7 ROMAN REINFORCEMENTS

The Romans have four legions that will enter during the
course of the game. The legions that can enter are marked on
the turn track. The exact turn they enter depends on the turn
and a die roll. Beginning on turn 1 (58 BC) the XIII and
XIV legions are eligible to enter the game. Roll a die. On
turn 1 they enter on a roll of 1-2. On turn 2 they enter on a
roll of 1-3. On turn 3 they enter automatically. Beginning on
turn 5 (54 BC) the I and XV legions are eligible to enter the
game. Roll a die. On turn 5 they enter on a roll of 1-3. On
turn 6 they enter on a 1-4. On turn 7 they enter auto-
matically. Any reinforcements, including eliminated legions
returning to play, are placed in Transalpine Gaul. If Transal-
pine Gaul is occupied by enemy units, they are placed in the
Off-Map area instead.

6.7.1 - Eliminated Legions

Any Roman Legions that were eliminated this turn return at
the end of the next turn durning the Reinforcement Phase at
full strength. For example, a legion killed on turn 3 (56 BC)
would return at the end of turn 4 (55 BC). Players should
place eliminated legions on the turn track to indicate when
they will return to play.

7.0 LEADERS

A few units represent significant historical figures at this
time. They are integrated into units, rather than having sepa-
rate units. Some leaders have special abilities.

7.1 JULIUS CAESAR

The 10th Legion represents Julius Caesar.
Caesar’s unit always fires first, regardless of
the initiative rating of defending units. In ad-
dition, Caesar’s unit does not count against an
area’s garrison limit. If the Caesar unir is eliminated (Julius Cae-
sar is killed), the Barbarian player wins an automatic victory.

7.2 ARIOVISTUS

Ariovistus was the king of the Germans
(Suebi). His name is written on his unit to
distinguish him from other German units.
He begins the game in Germania, which is
his home area. When Ariovistus attacks a neutral tribe, first
roll 2 die. On a 1-2, the tribe joins the Barbarian player auto-
matically and no battle is fought. The Barbarian player may
then regroup normally. If the Ariovistus unit is eliminated
(Ariovistus is killed), he is removed from the game perma-
nently.

7.3 VERCINGETORIX

Vercingetorix appears as a result of the play of
the Massive Revolt event card by the Bar-
barian player and he is always allied to the
Barbarian player.

The Barbarian player receives a -1 die roll modifier on all
Political Action attempts if the attempt is made against a tribe
whose home area is adjacent to the Vercingetorix unit. If this
ability is used then the Barbarian player must announce the
location (but not strength) of Vercingetorix. This ability is
optional. The Barbarian player may forfeit the bonus and
resolve a Political Action normally in order to avoid reveal-
ing the location of Vercingetorix. Vercingetorix may remain
outside of his home area every turn. He is not obligated to
return to his home area. Any Gallic tribe (but not German)
units in the same area as Vercingerorix at the end of the turn
may remain in the same area as Vercingetorix, so long as they
don’t exceed the area’s garrison limit.

Note: This is the only time Gallic tribe units may remain
outside of their home area. While Vercingetorix is in play the
Barbarian player may conduct one Supply Action (raid) per
turn. If Vercingetorix is eliminated, he is removed from the
game permanently.

74 MINOR LEADERS

There are two minor leader units, Dumnorix
and Ambiorix, which can appear as the result
of the play of the Major Revolt event card by
the Barbarian player. They are always allied to
the Barbarian player. Minor leaders have no special abilities.
They are merely an extra unit for the Barbarian player. Minor
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444 | leaders may never be controlled by the Ro-
= man player. Although the minor leaders have

: . given names for historical flavor, they are

: : not permanently eliminated from the game if

removed. A minor leader could be eliminated

and later return through the play of another Major Revolt

card. There are two home area markers for the minor leaders

to place and keep track of where their home areas are.

8.0 VICTORY CONDITIONS

At the end of turn 8 (51 BC) the player with the most victory
points is the winner.

During the course of the game players track their victory
points using their respective VP Blocks on the Victory Point
Track for the following objectives:

THE ROMAN PLAYER SCORES:

1 VP per German non-leader unit eliminated (3 VP max).
2 VP if they eliminate Ariovistus
3 VP if they eliminate Vercingetorix

If optional cavalry rule used:
1 VP for a cavalry unit eliminated

THE BARBARIAN PLAYER SCORES:

3 victory points for each Roman legion eliminated in battle
or by supply attrition

If optional cavalry rule used:
1 victory point for a cavalry unit eliminated

At the end of the game each player also scores one victory
point for each Gallic tribe area in Gaul they control. If both
players control one unit of a multi-unit tribe, the player that
controls the tribe’s home area gets the point. The Roman
player scores 3 victory points (instead of one) if they control
Britannia at the end of the game.

Note: While Britannia counts as 3 victory points for the
Roman player at the end of the game, it still only counts as 1
tribe controlled for either player when counting Tribe Areas

Controlled.

8.1 AUTOMATIC VICTORY

If Caesar is eliminated, the Barbarian player wins immediate-
ly. If either player controls 18 or more tribes when counting
Tribe Areas Controlled at the end of a turn, that player wins
immediately.

9.0 OPTIONAL RULES

Optional rules can be applied individually or grouped at play-
ers preference.

9.1 TOURNAMENT PLAY

Flip a coin. The player that wins the toss bids to play the
Romans by specifying the minimum number of starting sup-
ply points he or she thinks is necessary to win as the Romans.

The other player may then accept the bid and play the Gauls,
or counter with a lower bid.

Whoever bids lowest plays the Romans. A player who bids 0
supply points automatically plays the Romans with no pos-
sibility of the other player countering with a lower bid.

9.2 SOLITAIRE PLAY

The game is played using all of the game rules. To determine
who goes first in a turn roll 1 die for each side. The high roll
for that side starts the first turn of the game as the first player.
The solitaire gamer will play both sides by dealing cards face
down for each side. During that sides turn the player will
flip over one card face up and play the card (not one card for
each side at the same time as in the two player game). Cycle
through the cards as in normal game play. The player should
alternate the first player in a turn between the sides (if the
Roman player was the first player in 58 BC then the
Barbarian player would be the first player in 57 BC, then the
Roman in 56 BC and so on).

9.3 POLITICAL CONTROL DIE ROLLS WHEN
OPPOSING UNITS ARE IN THE AREA

When the active player uses a Political Action on a tribe area
thart the opposing player has units in (Roman Legions or Ger-
man units), the active player adds +1 to his political action die
roll.

For example; the Barbarian player uses a polivical action on Boii tribe
area with the Bellovaci 3 value card. The Roman player has 2 legions
in the Boii tribe area. The Barbarian player rolls his die for the
political action and rolls a 3. Because the Roman player has units in
Boii the Barbarian player adds +1 to the die roll making the total 2 4.
The Barbarian player is not successful in his political action.

9.4 GERMAN AND ROMAN CAVALRY

One extra German cavalry unit and one extra
Roman cavalry unit have been provided. Play-
ers may choose to use one or both. Cavalry has
an initiative rating of “A”, a battle rating of 2
and a strength of 2. Cavalry may move up to 2 areas as part
of its movement though it is subject to normal movement
restrictions when crossing a blue border or entering an area
with opposing player controlled units. All infantry rules apply
to the play of the cavalry pieces including adding replacement
steps to cavalry units as per the infantry rules.

During the End of Turn phase cavalry units must return
home before eliminated gallic tribe units return home, unless
wintering with Caesar or Ariovistus. This prevents a cavalry
unit from controlling Gallic tribe areas at the end of a turn.

9.5 SCORCHED EARTH -
BARBARIAN ADVANTAGE

The Barbarian player may perform one supply raid per turn
prior to the arrival of the Vercingetorix unit. If the Vercin-
getorix is on the board, the Barbatian player may petform up
to two supply raids per turn.




9.6 CAESAR CALLED BACK HOME -
BARBARIAN ADVANTAGE

Before rolling for the Harvest Effects on Supply Limits of an
Area, check to see if the Caesar unit is called back to Rome,
Roll one die. On a roll of 1 Caesar is removed from the board
and returns as a reinforcement at the end of the following
turn. Caesar cannot be called back to Rome two turns in a
[ow.

9.7 THE POLITICS OF WAR -
BARBARIAN ADVANTAGE

The Barbarian player gains 1 victory point for each Roman
legion brought into play as a reinforcement. The Roman
player may elect not to bring in one or more legions as rein-
forcements. The decision not to bring in a particular legion is
made after the entry die roll. Once the Roman player elects
not to bring in a legion, that legion is set aside until a
possible future reinforcement phase (at the discretion of the
Roman player). If it is brought in during a later
reinforcement phase then no additional die roll is needed but
the 1 victory point is awarded to the Barbarian player.

9.8 LEGIO X- ROMAN ADVANTAGE

To historically reflect the superior fighting ability the X Le-
gion (Caesars favorite), allow the X Legion (Caesar) to roll 1
extra die in battle.

9.9 ROMAN HISTORICAL STRENGTH -
ROMAN ADVANTAGE

Historically Roman legions were very strong. To reflect this
any Roman legion unit in battle with the Caesar unit, in-
creases it’s battle rating from 2 to 3.

10.0 COMPREHENSIVE EXAMPLE
OF PLAY

This example covers a complete first turn using the Start of
Game Setup, both players are ready to go and begin turn 1.

CARD PHASE

Both players draw five cards. The Romans draw the Menapi
(1), Remi (1), Santones (2), Aedui (2) and Helvetii (3). The
Barbarian player draw the Volcae (1), Esuvii (1), Treverii
(2), Boii (2) and Sequani (2).

CARD ACTION PHASE ROUND 1

The Roman player places the Remi card (1) face down, while
the Barbarian player places the Sequani (2) card face down.
Both players flip over their cards to reveal them. The Roman
player announces a movement action. The Barbarian player
announce a neutral tribe activation. Neutral tribe activations
happen first, so the Sequani now join the Barbarian player.
This is a bit of a dilemma for the Roman player, as the
Sequani space could now be used as a place to retreat Hel-
vetii units. The Roman player decides that he must attack the
Sequani as well.

Since the Roman player used a ‘1’ card for movement, he
may activate one group. He activates the group in Transal-
pine Gaul (his six legions), and moves legions VII and VIII
directly from Transalpine Gaul to Helvetii. Since it’s a blue
border he can move no more units across that border. He
then uses two supply points to force march legion IX and X
(Caesar) from Transalpine Gaul to Allobroges and from there
into Helvetii. Roman supply is now at 13. The Romans then
force march legions XI and XII from Transalpine Gaul to Se-
quani through Allobroges. Note that Allobroges and it’s units
are allies to the Roman player, thus allowing the force march.
Roman supply is now at 11.

Because the Roman player selected 2 movement action, he
decides the order of the battles. He elects to resolve the battle
in the Helvetii space first, declaring legions VII and VIII his
“main” force and tip them down to reveal their values. The
Barbarian player likewise tips their three units down to reveal
their values. The other two legions are considered reserves and
will not enter the baude until battle round 2. The Roman
units are both “A” initiative units, and therefore fire first. The
Roman player rolls 8 dice (one for each strength point) and
needs a 1 or a 2 to hit since each legion has a battle rating of
2.Herollsal,1,2,2,3, 3,5, 6. Four hits! Because damage
must be distributed equally, the Barbarian player reduces the
strength of each Helvetii unit by one, except for one unir that
takes two hits. Since the Barbarian units have nowhere to
retreat to (the Sequani space is an unresolved battle) they
decide to fire instead. They would normally have a total of 5
dice, but because they’re defending in the Alps, each unit
receives a +1 strength bonus for the fitst round of battle. They
therefore have a total strength of 8. The Barbarian player rolls
2,2,3,5,5,5,5, 5. Only two hits. The Roman player
applies one hit to legions VII and VIII.
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At the beginning of battle round two the Roman reserves are
revealed and are now a part of the battle. Caesar (Roman X
legion) fires first, and rolls a 2, 5, 5, 5. Only one hit. The re-
maining 3 legions fire, for a total of 10 dice, but only manage
to score 1 hit. However, the Barbarian player no longer have
their terrain bonus since it’s the second round of battle. They
have a combined strength of 3, but score no hits.



In the 3rd round of battle Caesar scores 2 hits, and the other
3 legions score a hit, eliminating all three Helvetii units
before they can return fire. The Roman player then stand all
of their units back to their upright position and regroup. The
Roman player elects to regroup legions IX and X to Allobro-
ges and legion VIII to Transalpine Gaul, leaving legion VII
In the Helvetii space.
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‘The Roman player now resolves the battle in the Sequani
area. Normally the Roman legions would fire first, but
because this is a fortified town area, the defending units are
treated as “A” initiative units. On top of that, they receive

a +1 to their battle rating for the first round of battle. The
Barbarian player therefore fires first, hitting on a 1-3. They
roll six dice and score 3 hits. The Roman player decides to
bail out, and retreat back to Allobroges. The Sequani, though
victorious, have nowhere to regroup to (since only German
units may regroup across the Rhine), and so stay in

their home area.

CARD ACTION PHASE ROUND 2

The st card play round is now over. Both players select a card
for their second round. The Roman player select the Menapi
(1) card while the Barbarian players select the Volcae (1) card.
Both players reveal their cards. The Roman player announces

he is performing a Movement action. The Barbarian player
likewise announces he is performing a movement action. Be-
cause both cards have an Action Point value of 1, the Roman
player moves first. The Roman player decides that he had
better take out the Sequani before the Barbarian player has a
chance to reinforce it. He announces that he is activating the
group in Allobroges, and moves all six units (four legions plus
the two Allobroges units) into the Sequani area. The
Barbarian player decides to activate Germania, and sends two
German units into the area, hoping his Sequani units can
survive long enough for his reserves to have some effect.

Even though the defending units are in a fortified town area
and thus have an “A” initiative, Caesar always fires first. He
rolls but only scores 1 hit. The Sequani units now roll. With
their +1 battle rating bonus in the first round of battle, they
score 3 hits. Legions IX, X and XII each take 1 hit. The regu-
lar legions fire next with a total strength of 8. They score 3
hits. The two Allobroges units now fire, with a total strength
of 2, but score no hits.

In battle round 2, the two German units ate revealed and
may now participate in battle. However, Caesar fires first and
scores two hits, one hit on each of the German units. Not
wanting to risk getting his German units killed, the Barbarian
player decides to retreat the two German units back to
Germania, leaving the two Sequani units. Since this is round
2, the Sequani no longer have a +1 battle rating bonus, and
need a 1 or 2 to hit. Even still, they manage to score 1 more
hit, which the Romans apply to legion XII. The regular
legions have a total strength of 7, and score 2 more hits,
eliminating the Sequani. The Roman player then stands his
units up and regroups. Caesar, legion IX and the two Allo-
broges units remain in the Sequani area. Legions XI and XII

regroup to Allobroges.

CARD ACTION PHASE ROUND 3

The Roman player plays the Aedui card (2) and the
Barbarian player play the Treveri (2) . Both players select
neutral tribe activation as their action. Technically the
Romans go first, though in this case it doesn’t matter. The
Romans now control the Aedui, and the Barbarian player
now control the Treveri. Both players have now used their
maximum number of neutral tribe activations for the turn.

CARD ACTION PHASE ROUND 4

The Roman player plays the Helvetii card (3) and the
Barbarian player plays the Esuvii (1) card. The Roman player
announces a supply action, while the Barbarian player an-
nounce movement. The Roman player adds 4 supply to the
supply track (3 for the action point value of the card, plus 1),
bringing the total back up to 15.

The Barbarian player move Ariovistus and the remaining
undamaged German unit to the Menapi area. Before battle is
resolved, the Barbarian player tries to use Ariovistus’ special
ability (roll 2 1-2 to gain control without bartle), but fails.
The Menapi are now controlled by the Romans. The
Barbarian player will have to beat the Menapi into
submission rather than simply intimidating them. The
German units have an initiative of “B”, and therefore fire

Obefore the Menapi.



Because Ariovistus and the German unit have different battle
ratings they must roll separately. Ariovistus has 3 dice to hit
on a 3 or less, and scores 1 hit. The regular German unit has
3 dice to hit on a 2 or less and misses! Because the Germans
are attacking across the Rhine, the Menapi receive a +1 to
their battle strength in the first round of battle, giving them
3 dice (remember, they took 1 hit already). They only score 1
hit, however. The Barbarian player applies it to the regular
German unit. In round 2 of battle Ariovistus scores two hits,
eliminating the Menapi unit. The Barbarian player then
regroups, sending Ariovistus to the Treveri area, while leaving
the regular German unit in Menapi territory.

CARD ACTION PHASE ROUND 5

Each player announces their last card, the Santones (2) for
the Roman player and the Boii (2) for the Barbarian player.
The Roman player announces a political action, while the
Barbarian player announces movement. The Roman player
decides to target the Santones with his political action. He
could have targeted any tribe (except the Helvetii on turn 1),
but by naming the Santones he receives a -1 die roll bonus
since the target tribe matches the name of the card. He rolls
a 3 which is reduced to a 2 due to the die roll bonus and the
Santones are now Roman controlled. The Barbarian player
can activate up to two groups for movement, but decide to
only activate the Treveri area. Ariviovistus and one Treveri
unit move into the Remi area. Ariovistus again tries to use
his special ability and rolls a 1. Success! The Remi join the
Barbarjan player without a fight. Ariovistus and the Treveri
unit regroup back to the Treveri home area.

END OF TURN PHASE

CHECK HARVEST

The harvest die roll is a 4, indicating a normal harvest. The
garrison limit for each area is therefore 2.

UNITS GO HOME

Eliminated tribes now return home. The Menapi return
home. Because there is a German unit present, they imme-
diately join the Barbarian player at strength 1. The Helverii
and Sequani both return home and join the Roman player at
strength 1 (per unit), because both areas are controlled by
the Roman player. All Roman legions not staying in a Gallic
tribe area return to Transalpine Gaul. This includes legions
VIL, IX, X and XII. Gallic tribe units controlled by the Ro-
man player not already in their home area now return home.
The Allobroges return to their home area. All Gallic tribe
units controlled by the Barbarian player are already in their
home area. Finally, the German units return home. Ariovis-
tus chooses not to remain in a Gallic tribe area. The Roman
player now controls six tribes, while the Barbarian player
controls 3. There is no automatic victory.

SUPPLY AND ATTRITION

‘The Roman player now pays supply points for legion IX (in
Sequani) and legion VIII (in Helverii) who remained in Gal-
lic tribe areas, for a total of four supply points, bringing the
total supply points down to 11.

REPLACEMENTS

The Roman player then pays supply points for replacements.
He uses a total of 8 supply points to replace all of the damage
to his legions, bringing them up to full strength, bringing his
supply point total down to 3.

The Roman player elects to give the Sequani and Allobroges
units 1 replacement point per unit, but not the Helvetii
units, because he considers them too dangerous if they
change control. The Barbarian player gives the Menapi unit a
replacement point.

ROMAN SUPPLY POINT PRODUCTION

T he Romans control two fortified town areas, one in
Transalpine Gaul (2) and one in Sequani (1). That produces a
total of 3 supply points, bringing the total back up to 6.

ROMAN REINFORCEMENT

T he Roman player then rolls a die to see if legions XIII and
X1V arrive but he rolls a 3. They do not appear as rein-
forcements this turn,

RULES CHANGES FOR VERSION 2.0 SUMMARY

5.1.1 (E) - If it has not already occurred, the Barbarian playe
may spend 1 VP to put the Major Revolt card in his hand at
the start of turn 7 automatically, drawing the other four car:
randomly. If chosen, it must be played as an Event and mus
be the first card played by the Barbarian player.

5.2.2 (E) - If there is a mix of Gallic and Roman or German
units, and they are the same strength, the hit must come fro
the Roman or German units first,

6.4 (E) - The number of supply points required for each legi
wintering outside of Transalpine Gaul depends on the
Harvest roll. If it was a poor harvest, it costs 3 supply points
per legion. If it was a bountiful harvest, it costs 1 supply poi
per legion. Otherwise it costs 2 supply points per legion.
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11.0 CARD ROSTER SECTION

In the card deck there are 31 cards. Within this mix there 26 cards
that have tribe names (one card for each tribe area on the map,
including Germania) that have action points. Within the 26 tribe
cards, the breakdown is as follows:

3 actions (3 value) - 3 cards
2 actions (2 value) - 12 cards
1 action (1 value) - 11cards

There are five event cards that can be used as a 1 action point card
or played as the event. The events are:

A. MINOR REVOLT (2 CARDS)

If played by the Roman player, he selects a single active tribe con-
trolled by the Barbarian player. All units of that tribe that haven’t
already been eliminated this turn return at their cutrent strength to
their home area immediately. If their home area is not occupied by
any other units, they revert to neutral status at full scrength. The act
of a tribe returning to its home area is not considered movement,
i.e. it does not affect border crossing limits, retreat restrictions, etc.
It is simply picked up and placed in its home area, if it is already in
it’s home area it remains there. If the tribe’s home area is occupied
by Roman or Barbarian units, the tribe joins the other player (i.e.
the player who does not have units in that tribe’s home area), and a
battle is resolved immediately (see 5.2.2. Battles), with the units
returning home considered the attacker. If all units of the tribe have
already been eliminated this turn then nothing happens, L.e. the
card has no effect.

If played by the Barbarian player, he selects a single active tribe
controlled by the Roman player or a neutral tribe. All units of that
tribe (active or neutral) that haven’t already been eliminated this
turn return at their current strength to their home area immedi-
ately and become Barbarian allies. If there are Roman units in the
same area, a battle is resolved immediately (see 5.2.2. Battles), with
the units returning home considered the attacker. If all units of that
tribe have already been eliminated this turn then nothing happens,
i.e. the card has no effect. A neutral tribe activated in this fashion
does not count against the Neutral Tribe Activation limit.

The Helvetii tribe may not be the target of a Minor Revolt on Turn
1 (58 BC). German units may never be the target of a Minor
Revolt.

Note: Tribes changing sides as the result of ANY revolt card (Mi-
nor, Major, or Massive) that return to their home area, even if they
started in their home area are considered the attacker. Any units
defending in a fortified town area would get the bonus for the ter-
rain against tribes returning home in this case.

B. MAJOR REVOLT (1 CARD)

If played by the Roman player treat as a minor revolt.

If played by the Barbarian player, he selects a single active tribe
controlled by the Roman player or a neutral tribe, in Celtae or Bel-
gica (not Aquitainia). If controlled by the Roman player, all units of
that tribe that haven’t been eliminated this turn immediately return
to their home area at their current strength. If the home area of the
selected tribe contains Roman unirs, then resolve a battle
immediately (see 5.2.2. Battles), with the units returning home
considered the actacker. If bartle occurs and all Gallic tribe units

are eliminated then the event has no further effect, i.e. there is no
minor leader placement, even if all Roman units were eliminated as
well. If the home area of the selected tribe does not contain any
Roman units, or battle results in a Barbarian victory, place a minor
leader of the tribe matching color in that area, i.e. Ambiorix if the
home area is in Belgica (green), or Dumnorix if the home area is in
Celeae (grey). The Barbarian player may then immediacely activate
that area (only) for movement. The area in which the minor leader
is placed is now considered the home area for that leader until the
leader is eliminated. A neutral tribe activated in this fashion does
not count against the Neutral Tribe Activation limit. If both minor
leaders are already on the map, the Barbarian player treats this event
as a Minor Revolt. German units may never be the targer of a
Major Revolt.

Note: The differences between the Minor Revolt card and a Major
Revolt card is the Major Revolt adds the minor leaders for the Bar-
barian player and gives one group move for the selected tribe.

C. MASSIVE REVOLT (1 CARD)

If played by the Roman player treat as a minor revolt.

If played by the Barbarian player on tun 1 treat as a minor revolt.
On turn 2 or later, he selects any four tribes, whether neutral or
controlled by the Roman player. If controlled by the Roman player,
all units of those tribes that haven’t been eliminated this turn
immediately return to their respective home areas at their current
strength. If the home area of the selected tribes contain Roman
units, then resolve a battle immediately (see 5.2.2. Bartles) for each
of those areas with the units returning home considered the at-
tacker. The Barbarian player determines the order in which bactles
are resolved. If all Gallic tribe units of the four tribes selected are
eliminated then the event has no further effect, even if all Roman
units were eliminated in battle as well. In this case, the card remains

in the deck.

If the home areas of the selected tribes do not contain any Roman
units, or a battle results in a Barbarian player victory, place the
Vercingetorix unit in any of the home areas of the four selected
tribes. If battle occurred, he may only be placed where there was a
Barbarian player victory. The Barbarian player may immediately
activate any three areas for movement. He is not limited to the four
tribal areas that were selected for the event. The area in which the
Vercingetorix unit is placed is now considered his home area. How-
ever, if his home area is later controlled by the Romans then the
Barbarian player may immediately select any friendly controlled
tribe area (not Germania) as his new home area. If the Vercingeto-
rix unit is eliminated it is removed from the game permanently.

Once this card has been played as a Massive Revolt by the Bar-
barian player it is removed from the game. Do not remove it from
the game if played by either player as a Minor Revolt or a move-
ment action. A neutral tribe activated in this fashion does not count
against the Neutral Tribe Activation limit.

D. BAGGAGE TRAIN (1 CARD)

If played by the Roman player, he may add 3 supply points to the
Supply Track. If played by the Barbarian player, he may distribute
2 steps among friendly units in any one area, or he may subtract 2

supply points from the Roman Supply Track.
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